
rcrs Banos
rite Crossroads of California

www.losbanos.org

AGENDA
Updated 11/15/2019

CITY COUNCIL MEETING

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
520 J Street

Los Banos, California

NOVEMBER 20, 2019

If you require special assistance to attend or participate in this meeting, please call the
City Clerk's Office @ (209) 827-7000 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

The City of Los Banos complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990.
'* '* * '* * '* '* ** * '* '* '* * '* '*

Si requiere asistencia especial para atender 0 participar en esta junta por favor lIame a la oficina
de la Secretaria de la ciudad al (209) 827-7000 a 10 menos de 48 horas previas de la junta.

, ~.~.9~i~~~..~e...~?~..~.~n.o..S.C.~"!?/::?.~~~ ..~c.~~..~e. ..~"!e.'.~c.~~?~.:?~.~e.~~.a..~.~~i~~~f~~~J..~e. ..t.::?: ...l

**

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council
regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection at the meeting

and in the City Clerk's office located at City Hall, 520 J Street, Los Banos, California
during normal business hours. In addition, such writings and documents may be posted

on the City's website at www.losbanos.oro
*************

Cualquier escritura 0 los documentos proporcionaron a una mayorla del Ayuntamiento respecto a cualquier
artIculo en este orden del dla sera hecho disponible para la

inspecci6n publica en la reuni6n y en la oficina de la Secretaria de la ciudad en City Hall, 520 J Street. Los Banos,
CalifornIa durante horas de oficina normales. Ademas, tales escrituras y los documentos

pueden ser anunciados en el website de la ciudad en www.losbanos.org.
...................... , , , .

1. CALL TO ORDER. 7:00 PM

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

3. ROLL CALL: (City Council Members)

Faria , Johnson-Santos , Jones I Lewis , ViI/alta-- --- --- --- --

4. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

5. PUBLIC FORUM. (Members of the public may address the City Council Members
on any item of public interest that is within the jurisdiction of the City Council;
includes agenda and non-agenda items. No action will be taken on non-agenda
items. Speakers are limited to a five (5) minute presentation. Detailed guidelines
are posted on the Council Chamber informational table.)

Los Banos City Council Agenda - November 20, 2019 Page 10f3



6. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA. (Items on the
Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be voted on in one motion
unless removed from the Consent Agenda by a City Council Member.)

A. Check Register for #218869 - #219050 in the Amount of $512,660.57.

Recommendation: Approve the check register as submitted.

B. Minutes for the November 6,2019 City Council Meeting.

Recommendation: Approve the minutes as submitted.

7. PUBLIC HEARING. (If you challenge the proposed action as described herein in
court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised
at the public hearing described herein or in written correspondence delivered to the
City at, or prior to, the public hearing.)

A. Public Hearing - To Receive Public Comment and Consideration of
Amending the Business License Renewal Fee.

1) City Council Resolution No. 6158 - Reducing the Annual Renewal
Commercial Business License Fee.

Recommendation: Receive staff report, open the public hearing, receive public comment,
close the public hearing, and adopt the resolution as submitted.

8. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE NO. 1177 - AN
UNCODIFIED URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS
AMENDING TITLE 2 CHAPTER 2 ARTICLE 2 OF THE LOS BANOS MUNICIPAL
CODE TO AMEND THE NUMBER OF MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING
COMMISSION.

Recommendation: Receive staff report, the public hearing, receive public comment, close the
public hearing, waive the reading and adopt the ordinance as submitted.

9. CONSIDERATION OF APPOINTMENT TO PLANNING COMMISSION - ONE (1)
VACANCY.

Recommendation: Receive staff report and fill the vacancy.

10. PIONEER ROAD WIDENING PROJECT UPDATE.

Recommendation: Receive staff report and direction from the City Council on how to proceed.

11. ADVISEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICES. (No Report.)

12. CITY MANAGER REPORT.

13. REPORT/UPDATE ON MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS
(MCAG) AND MEASURE V COMMITIEE.

Recommendation: Informational item only, no action to be taken.

Los Banos City Council Agenda - November 20, 2019 Page 2 0'3



14. CITY COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS.

A. Tom Faria

B. Daronica Johnson-Santos

C. Brett Jones

D. Deborah Lewis

E. Mayor Mike Villalta

15. CLOSED SESSION.

A. Public Employee Release, Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.

B. Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation; Initiation of Litigation
Pursuant to Paragraph (4) of Subdivision (d) of Government Code Section
54956.9: One Potential Case.

16. ADJOURNMENT.

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that the foregoing agenda was posted on the
Ci all bulletin board not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting.

. -f.~
Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk Dated this 15tl1 day of November 2019

Los Banos City Council Agenda - November 20, 2019 Page 30'3



CK # 218869 - # 219050 11/20/2019 $512,660.57
Bank Reconciliation

LOSChecks by Date Banos
User: jcanchola Al 11/{.> Cn>$smculs ofCal,rornia
Printed: 11/12/2019 - 1:07PM

Cleared and Not Cleared Checks

Print Void Checks

Check No Check Name Module Void Amount
218869 10/30/2019 Dept of Housing & Community Development State NSP AP 17,551.00

218870 10/30/2019 Gametime AP 68,002.25

218871 111112019 Alhambra AP 201.92

218872 11/1/2019 Arneripride Services AP 298.58

218873 11/1/2019 Aramark Uniform Ser Inc AP 783.44

218874 11/1/2019 AT&T Mobility AP 228.86

218875 111112019 AT&T AP 900.32

218876 111112019 Brenntag Pacific Inc AP 1,201.47

218877 11/1/2019 Bruce's Tire Inc AP 2,951.90

218878 1111/2019 BSK Associates AP 112.00

218879 11/1/2019 California Municipal Statistics, Inc. AP 500.00

218880 11/112019 CDTFA California Dept. ofTax & Fee AP 4,103.97

218881 11/1/2019 CCID AP 1.68

218882 11/1/2019 Comcast AP 808.00

218883 11/1/2019 Dakota Pump Inc AP 3,084.79

218884 111112019 Double D Towing, LLC AP 250.00

218885 111112019 Downstream Aviation LP AP 1,425.00

218886 11/112019 Electric Drives Inc AP 673.70

218887 111112019 Ernest Packaging Solutions AP 156.49

218888 11/112019 Fast Track Car Wash AP 273.00

218889 111112019 Federal Express Corporation AP 54.85

218890 11/1/2019 Fresno City College AP 137.00

218891 11/1/2019 Jorge Fernandez AP 500.00

218892 11/112019 Golden State Flow Measurement AP 4,493.12

218893 111112019 Galls Inc AP 87.80

218894 11/112019 Government Revenue Solutions Holdings I, LLC AP 750.00

218895 1111/2019 Helena Chemical Co Inc AP 390.30

218896 11/112019 Herwaldt Automotive Group, Inc. AP 422.79

218897 11/112019 Marfab Inc AP 290.44

218898 111112019 Matson Alarm Co Inc AP 181.00

218899 1111/2019 McNamara Sports Inc AP 1,406.23

218900 11/1/2019 Merced Truck & Trailer Inc AP 235.79

218901 1111/2019 MOO,Inc. AP 108.05

218902 11/112019 North Central Laboratories AP 218.96

218903 111112019 The Office City AP 295.00

218904 111112019 OSE AP 66.30

218905 11/1/2019 O'Reilly Auto Parts AP 392.14

218906 111112019 Owen Equipment Sales AP 754.26

218907 111112019 Pitney Bowes Inc AP 122.93

218908 111112019 Paradigm Liason Services AP 600.00

218909 11/1/2019 JeremyRahn AP 2,182.21

218910 1111/2019 Roadline Products, Inc. USA AP 423.43

218911 11/1/2019 Renee Bush Veritext LLC AP 250.00

218912 1111/2019 Safe T Lite ofModesto, Inc. AP 43.07



218913 1111/2019 Save Mart Supennarkets AP 135.24

218914 1111/2019 Sherwin Williams Co AP 61.55

218915 11/112019 Sorensens True Value AP 322.61

218916 11/1/2019 Sorensens True Value AP 191.32

218917 11/112019 T & T Pavement Markings and Products, Inc. AP 5,151.69

218918 11/1/2019 Blanca & He1eotoro Moreno AP 426.28

218919 11/1/2019 D.R. Horton AP 163.72

218920 11/1/2019 Jennifer Flores AP 43.29

218921 111112019 D.R. Horton AP 162.98

218922 111112019 Valerie Lomax AP 98.51

218923 1111/2019 D.R. Horton AP 153.25

218924 1i/1/2019 Verizon Wireless AP 662.76

218925 1111/2019 Windecker Inc AP 6,973.49

218926 1111/2019 Zee Medical Service Co AP 207.29

218927 111112019 Central Valley Cardiovascular Group Inc. AP 180.00

218928 111112019 Dept of Transportmion AP 5,139.25

218929 11/1/2019 Cody Griffis AP 617.50

218930 1111/2019 Michael J Hill AP 150.00

218931 111112019 JB Anderson Land Use Planning AP 9,115.00

218932 111112019 Deborah Lewis AP 54.00

218933 1111/2019 Liebert Cassidy Whitmore AP 694.00

218934 11/1/2019 Los Banos Volunteer AP 2,416.67

218935 11/1/2019 Los Banos Medical Group A Medical Corp. AP 100.00

218936 11/1/2019 Steve Macillas AP 140.00

218937 11/112019 Gerald "Obie" O'Brien AP 77.14

218938 111112019 PG&E Company AP 125,336.23

218939 11/1/2019 Pinnacle Healthcare Medical Group AP 200.00

218940 111112019 Premier Access Insurance Co. AP 20,532.14

218941 1111/2019 Ronny's Inc. AP 39,044.86

218942 111112019 Ronny's Inc. AP 8,010.92

218943 1111/2019 Ronny's Inc. AP 53,272.82

218944 1111/2019 Michael K. Sanders AP 4,380.45

218945 11/1/2019 Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. AP 3,853.50

218946 111112019 Sun Life Financial AP 6,796.96

218947 11/1/2019 SWRCB Accounting Office AP 70.00

218948 111112019 Law Offices of William A Vaughn AP 12,000.00

218949 111112019 Michael G. Villalta AP 45.87

218966 1114/2019 Aflac-Customer Service AP 535.19

218967 11/4/2019 In Shape Health Clubs Inc AP 597.47

218968 1114/2019 Los Banos Police Assn AP 385.00

218969 1114/2019 Los Banos Police Assn AP 175.00

218970 11/412019 Los Banos Police Assn AP 910.00

218971 1114/2019 MassMutual AP 1,176.39

218972 1114/2019 MassMutual AP 4,142.50

218973 1114/2019 Merced County Sheriff AP 150.00

218974 1114/2019 Irma Isabel Padilla AP 27.50

218975 1lI4/2019 Nationwide Retirement Solutions AP 6,103.13

218976 1114/2019 Professional Fire Fighter AP 630.00

218977 1lI4/2019 State Disbursement Unit AP 2,088.00

218978 1114/2019 Vantagepont Transfer Agents - 306797 AP 884.45

218979 1114/2019 Vantagepoint Transfer Agents - 705827 AP 25.00

218980 1114/2019 Vantagepoint Transfer Agents - 801838 AP 3,250.00

218982 1116/2019 WexBank AP 295.35

218983 11/8/2019 Advanced Marking Systems AP 11.74



218984 11/8/2019 American Planning Association, CA Chapter AP 507.00

218985 11/8/2019 Ameripride Services AP 151.29

218986 11/8/2019 Aramark Uniform Ser Inc AP 694.37

218987 11/812019 Dorothy June Baker AP 122.30

218988 11/8/2019 BJ's Consumers Choice AP 234.00

218989 11/8/2019 Blueglobes LLC AP 123.55

218990 11/8/2019 BMC Software, Inc. AP 591.32

218991 11/8/2019 Borelli Real Estate Service, Inc. AP 90.00

218992 11/8/2019 Bruce's Tire Inc AP 2,217.04

218993 11/8/2019 BSK Associates AP 1,652.00

218994 11/8/2019 Comcast AP 113.59

218995 11/8/2019 Copy Shipping Solutions AP 95.92

218996 11/8/2019 LN Curtis & Sons AP 679.58

218997 11/8/2019 Custom Locksmith & Alarm Inc. AP 441.67

218998 11/8/2019 Dell Marketing L P AP 2,425.15

218999 11/812019 Employee Relations, Inc. AP 50.00

219000 11/8/2019 Farmer Brothers Coffee AP 136.04

219001 11/812019 Fastenal Company AP 46.41

219002 11/8/2019 Federal Express Corporation AP 41.53

219003 11/8/2019 Ferguson Enterprises Inc DBA Groeniger & Company AP 375.67

219004 11/8/2019 Galls Inc AP 100.02

219005 11/8/2019 Grainger Parts Operations AP 98.25

219006 11/8/2019 Vince Gomez AP 100.00

219007 11/8/2019 David A Jones AP 2,060.00

219008 11/8/2019 Lucas Business Systems AP 1,159.80

219009 11/8/2019 Life Line Screening of America AP 600.00

219010 11/8/2019 Selena Winnett Lopez AP 350.00

219011 11/8/2019 Marfab Inc AP 225.82

219012 11/8/2019 McNamara Sports Inc AP 173.17

219013 11/8/2019 Miracle Playsystems, Inc. AP 1,526.63

219014 11/8/2019 MOO, Inc. AP 125.75

219015 11/812019 North Central Laboratories AP 96.22

219016 11/8/2019 The Office City AP 132.68

219017 11/8/2019 OSE AP 729.65

219018 11/8/2019 O'Reilly Auto Parts AP 800.39

219019 11/8/2019 PG&E Company AP 10.18

219020 11/8/2019 Protech Security & Electronics, Inc. AP 60.00

219021 1118/2019 Jesus Javier Parras AP 600.00

219022 11/8/2019 Jeremy Rahn AP 530.42

219023 11/8/2019 Mario Rodriguez AP 100.00

219024 11/812019 Santos Ford Inc. AP 119.34

219025 11/8/2019 Save Mart Supermarkets AP 95.16

219026 11/8/2019 Sherwin Williams Co AP 349.25

219027 11/8/2019 Shift Calendars Inc AP 407.78

219028 11/8/2019 Snap On Tools AP 221.96

219029 11/812019 Sorensens True Value AP 330.00

219030 11/8/2019 Sprint Solutions, Inc. AP 189.95

219031 11/8/2019 Telcion Communications Group AP 2,176.41

219032 11/8/2019 Stephanie Pereira AP 14.36

219033 11/8/2019 USA Blue Book AP 89.36

219034 11/812019 Alejandro Aldama AP 380.26

219035 11/8/2019 Anel Villegas AP 600.00

219036 11/8/2019 Westside Veterinary Service, Inc. AP 344.52

219037 11/8/2019 Windecker Inc AP 6,040.40



Break in check sequence due to the following:
Check #218950 - #218965 (Payroll)

Break in check sequence due to the following:
Check #218981 (Payroll)

219038

219039

219040

219041

219042

219043

219044

219045

219046

219047

219048

219049

219050

11/8/2019

11/8/2019

11/812019

11/8/2019

11/8/2019

ll/8/2019

11/8/2019

ll/8/2019

11/8/2019

11/8/2019

11/8/2019

11/8/2019

11/8/2019

Young's Air Conditioning

Zee Medical Service Co

Anderson Homes

Daniel Amabile

Luis Castellanos

Central Valley Cardiovascular Group Inc.

Employment Development Dept

Mary Lou Gilardi

Max Hostetler

John Deere Financial

Liebert Cassidy Whitmore

Sarah Sanchez

Windecker Inc

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

AP

Total Void

Total Void

Total Valid

Total Valid

Total Check

Total Check

1,378.00

69.44

12,121.87

178.00

100.00

180.00

829.00

37.53

78.00

349.82

816.05

439.61

18,075.04

o

165

512,660.57

165

512,660.57



CITY OF LOS BANOS
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

NOVEMBER 6, 2019

ACTION MINUTES - These minutes are prepared to depict action
taken for agenda items presented to the City Council. For greater
detail of this meeting refer to the electronic media (CD and/or audio)
kept as a permanent record.

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Villalta called the City Council Meeting to order at the hour
of 7:03 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Police Chief Brizzee led the pledge of allegiance.

ROLL CALL - MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL PRESENT: Council Members
Daronica Johnson-Santos, Deborah Lewis, Brett Jones, Mayor Michael Villalta; Absent
Tom Faria.

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: City Manager Terrazas, City Attorney Vaughn, City
Clerk/Human Resources Director Mallonee, City Treasurer/Accounting & Budget
Supervisor Tomas, Police Chief Brizzee, Fire Chief Hurley, Community & Economic
Development Director Elms, Public Works Director/City Engineer Fachin.

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Motion by Johnson-Santos,
seconded by Jones to approve the City Council Meeting agenda. The motion carried by
the affirmative action of all City Council Members present; Faria absent.

PRESENTATIONS.

PROCLAMATION - CANCER AWARENESS. Mayor Villalta presented the
proclamation to the Los Banos Fire Fighters in attendance. Los Banos Firefighter Juan
Ramirez stated that this is the 6th year in a row that the Fire Department has put on this
fundraiser. This year, Kagome sponsored the cost of the shirts so that the entire amount
of raised funds would be going to those recipients in the community. This year, $6,860
was raised through this fundraiser.

RECOGNITION OF ENTRY AWARDS FROM THE VFW POST 2487 AND AMERICAN
LEGION POST 166 VETERANS DAY PARADE. Mayor Villalta asked the Veterans in
attendance to come forward and present the Veterans Parade awards. Mike Hughes
spoke regarding the Veterans Day Parade and thanked the Los Banos Police
Department and the City for their cooperation during the event. Patricia McCoy
presented awards to the following recipients: Westside Elementary School as a parade
winner. The Assistant Principal, Maggie Ordunez, spoke regarding their group and
thanked all the students and parents for the time they spent on the parade float; Los
Banos Junior High School. The Principal, Deolinda Brasil, thanked the veterans for
putting on this annual parade and for their service; Pacheco High School girls' golf



team, Teacher Laura Barger thanked the veterans for their service and for putting on
the parade. Mike Hughes introduced the veterans in attendance: Patricia McCoy, Rick
Toscano, Ray McCully, lido Martins, Jim Valentine, and Tom Higby.

PUBLIC FORUM: MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ADDRESS THE CITY COUNCIL
MEMBERS ON ANY ITEM OF PUBLIC INTEREST THAT IS WITHIN THE
JURISDICTION OF THE CITY; INCLUDES AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS.
NO ACTION WILL BE TAKEN ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS. SPEAKERS ARE
LIMITED TO A FIVE (5) MINUTE PRESENTATION. DETAILED GUIDELINES ARE
POSTED ON THE COUNCIL CHAMBER INFORMATIONAL TABLE. POLICE CHIEF
BRIZZEE recognized Kathy Wilber for her 15 years of Police Volunteer Service at the
Animal Shelter amounting to thousands of hours of work; Ms. Wilber thanked the
community for their support and spoke regarding the services the animal shelter
provides; Mayor Villalta thanked Ms. Wilber both personally and professionally for all
that she has done in taking care of the animals at the animal shelter, stating that she will
be missed so much; JEFF DELACRUZ, Government Teacher at Pacheco High School,
spoke regarding how his students are in attendance and how he brings them here to
see how local government works; STACIA ROLAS, Pacheco High School student,
stated that she lives in the Ranchwood area and thinks there needs to be more stop
signs in the area, particularly adding stop signs on Santa Barbara; Gene Lieb, Chamber
of Commerce, spoke regarding the upcoming Christmas Parade being held on
December 6, 2019 and sponsored by Republic Services and Coldwell Bank, the events
going on that evening, applications are available at the Chamber office and Los Banos
Enterprise too, and encouraged all to participate and attend. No one else came forward
to speak and the public forum was closed.

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA. Council Member Lewis
requested that item 7Q - City Council Resolution No. 6152 - Awarding the Biq for the
Purchase of One New 2019-2020 Crack Seal Machine; Authorizes the Public Works
Director/City Engineer to Issue the Purchase Order to Dispensing Technology
Corporation in the Amount of $93,481.24 be removed from the Consent Agenda for
separate approval and presentation.

Motion by Lewis, seconded by Jones to approve the consent agenda, with the removal
of 7Q - City Council Resolution No. 6152 - Awarding the Bid for the Purchase of One
New 2019-2020 Crack Seal Machine; Authorizes the Public Works Director/City
Engineer to Issue the Purchase Order to Dispensing Technology Corporation in the
Amount of $93,481.24 item as follows: Check Register for #218328 - #218868 in the
Amount of $2,634,773.16; First Quarter Investment Report for Fiscal Year 2019/2020;
Minutes for the September 18, 2019 City Council Meeting; Minutes for the October 2,
2019 City Council Meeting; City Council Resolution No. 6140 - Amending the 2019
2020 Fiscal Year Budget and Approving the Increase of Expenditures in the Amount of
$45,331.33 and Revenues in the Amount of $43,331.33, Related to the Replacement of
a Totaled Police Vehicle, to be Reimbursed by McLarens Insurance Firm and the
Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority; City Council Resolution No.
6141 - Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into Measure V Regional Project Funding



Agreement for the Pacheco Boulevard (SR 152) Regional Path Project Between the
City of Los Banos and Merced County Association of Governments (MCAG); City
Council Resolution No. 6142 - Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into Measure V
Regional Project Funding Agreement for the Pioneer Road Widening Project Between
the City of Los Banos and Merced County Association of Governments (MCAG); City
Council Resolution No. 6143 - Accepting Public Improvements for Shaunessy Village
Phases 1, 2 & 3, Generally Located Within the Area Bounded by APN 083-130-042 to
the North, Highway 165 (Mercey Springs Road) and APNs 083-100-009, 083-100-008
and 083-100-007 to the West, Scripps Drive to the South, and College Greens
Subdivision to the East, More Specifically Identified as APNs 083-100-005 and 083-100
006 (Developer: Stonewood Home, Inc.); City Council Resolution No. 6144 - Approving
and Adopting Final Tract Map No. 2001-02 Mission Village South Phase 3C and
Accompanying Subdivision Improvement Agreement, Generally Located Within the
Area Bounded by Mission Village South Phase 3B to the North, Las Palmas Road to the
East, Willmott Road to the South, and APN 428-280-002 to the West, More Specifically
Identified as APN 428-280-010 (Applicant: Stonefield Home, Inc., a California
Corporation); City Council Resolution No. 6145 - Approving and Adopting Final Tract
Map No. 2016-02 East Center Phase 2A and Accompanying Subdivision Improvement
Agreement, Generally Located within the Area Bounded by Center Avenue to the West,
Future Easter Center Phase 3 to the South, East Center Phase 1 Subdivision to the
East, More Specifically Identified as APN 431-270-005 (Developer: Pioneer
Development Company, Inc.); City Council Resolution No. 6146 - Approving and
Adopting Final Tract Map No. 2017-01 Stonecreek at Los Banos the Villages Phase VII
Phase 1B Unit 1 and Accompanying Subdivision Improvement Agreement, Generally
Located within the Area Bounded by Villages VII Phase 1 Unit 1 to the North, Future
Villages VII Phase 1B Unit 2 to the South and East, and Merced County APN 430-060
002 to the West, More Specifically Identified as Lot D APN 430-060-032 (Applicant:
Anderson Homes, a California Corporation); City Council Resolution No. 6147 
Awarding the Bid for the Purchase of One New 2019-2020 Model Cab and Chassis;
Authorizes the Public Works Director/City Engineer to Issue the Purchase Order to
Fresno Truck Center in the Amount of $108,884.21; City Council Resolution No. 6148 
Awarding the Bid for the Purchase of One New 2019-2020 Model Cab and Chassis with
240 Hooklift System; Authorizes the Public Works Director/City Engineer to Issue the
Purchase Order to Fresno Truck Center in the Amount of $141,834.37; City Council
Resolution No. 6149 - Awarding the Bid for the Purchase of One New 2019-2020 Model
Medium Duty Utility Truck with Lift Gate #A; Authorizes the Public Works Director/City
Engineer to Issue the Purchase Order to Santos Ford in the Amount of $47,995.00; City
Council Resolution No. 6150 - Awarding the Bid for the Purchase of One New 2019
2020 Model Medium Duty Utility Truck with Lift Gate #B; Authorizes the Public Works
Director/City Engineer to Issue the Purchase Order to Santos Ford in the Amount of
$47,995.00; City Council Resolution No. 6151 - Awarding the Bid for the Purchase of
One New 2019-2020 Model Medium Duty Utility Truck with Lift Gate #C; Authorizes the
Public Works Director/City Engineer to Issue the Purchase Order to Santos Ford in the
Amount of $47,995.00; City Counoil Resolution No. 6152 hNarding the Bid for the
Purchase of One Ne'N 201 9 2020 Crook Seal Machine; Authorizes the Publio 'Narks
Director/City Engineer to Issue the Purchase Order to Dispensing Teohnology



Corporation in the Amount of $93,481.24; City Council Resolution No. 6153 
Authorizing Award of Construction Contract to Precision Grade, Inc. in the Amount of
$52,439.00 with a 10% Contingency in the Amount of $5,243.00 for yth Street Ball Park
Restroom; City Council Resolution No. 6154 - Authorizing Award of Construction
Contract to TBS Contractors in the Amount of $198,630.00 with a 10% Contingency in
the Amount of $19,863.00 for the "Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality - Construction
Infill Sidewalk Improvements" (Federal-Aid Project No. CML-5160(027» at Various
Locations in the City of Los Banos; City Council Resolution No. 6155 - Amending the
2019/2020 Fiscal Year Budget and Approving the Increase in Expenditures of Measure
H Funding in the Amount of $40,000; Related to the Purchase and Upfitting of a New
Code Enforcement Vehicle. The motion carried by the affirmative action of all Council
Members present; Faria absent.

CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 6152 - AWARDING THE BID FOR THE
PURCHASE OF ONE NEW 2019-2020 CRACK SEAL MACHINE; AUTHORIZES THE
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR/CITY ENGINEER TO ISSUE THE PURCHASE ORDER
TO DISPENSING TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $93,481.24.
There was Council Member and staff discussion regarding what projects this machine
would be used for and the timelines for these projects.

Motion by Lewis, seconded by Jones to approve City Council Resolution No. 6152 
Awarding the Bid for the Purchase of One New 2019-2020 Crack Seal Machine;
Authorizes the Public Works Director/City Engineer to Issue the Purchase Order to
Dispensing Technology Corporation in the Amount of $93,481.24. The motion carried
by the affirmative action of all Council Members present; Faria absent.

PUBLIC HEARING - TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION OF
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND RESTATE ARTICLE 34, CHAPTER 3 OF TITLE 9
OF THE LOS BANOS MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING DENSITY BONUSES AND
OTHER AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES; ORDINANCE NO.
1175 - AMENDING AND RESTATING ARTICLE 34 CHAPTER 3 OF TITLE 9 OF THE
LOS BANOS MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING DENSITY BONUSES AND OTHER
AFFORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES (SECOND READING &
ADOPTION). Community & Economic Development Director Elms presented the staff
report which included a PowerPoint presentation.

Mayor Villalta opened the public hearing. No one came forward to speak and the public
hearing was closed.

Motion by Johnson-Santos, seconded by Jones to waive the second reading of
Ordinance No. 1175 - Amending and Restating Article 34 Chapter 3 of Title 9 of the Los
Banos Municipal Code Regarding Density Bonuses and Other Affordable Housing
Development Incentives. The motion carried by the affirmative action of all City Council
Members present, Faria absent.



Motion by Johnson-Santos, seconded by Jones to adopt Ordinance No. 1175 
Amending and Restating Article 34 Chapter 3 of Title 9 of the Los Banos Municipal
Code Regarding Density Bonuses and Other Affordable Housing Development
Incentives. The motion carried by the following roll call vote: AYES: Johnson-Santos,
Jones, Lewis, Villalta; NOES: None; ABSENT: Faria.

PUBLIC HEARING - TO RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENT AND CONSIDERATION OF
A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT #2019-03 TO ALLOW FOR THE SALE OF ALCOHOL
UNDER A TYPE 41 ON-SALE BEER AND WINE LICENSE FOR A BONA-FIDE
PUBLIC EATING PLACE LOCATED AT 1101 F STREET; APN: 025-152-009
(APPLICANT: JOHN C. BUSTILLOS); CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 6156 
FINDING THE PROPOSED PROJECT TO BE CATEGORICALLY EXEMPT FROM
THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT PURSUANT TO SECTION
15332, IN-FILL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS AND APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT #2019-03 TO ALLOW FOR THE SALE OF ALCOHOL UNDER A TYPE 41
ON-SALE BEER AND WINE LICENSE AT 1101 F STREET, APN 025-152-009.
Community & Economic Development Director Elms presented the staff report which
included a PowerPoint presentation.

Mayor Villalta opened the public hearing. No one came forward to speak and the public
hearing was closed.

Motion by Johnson-Santos, seconded by Jones to adopt City Council Resolution No.
6156 - Finding the Proposed Project to be Categorically Exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act Pursuant to Section 15332, In-Fill Development Projects and
Approving Conditional Use Permit #2019-03 to Allow for the Sale of Alcohol Under a
Type 41 On-Sale Beer and Wine License at 1101 F Street, APN 025-152-009. The
motion carried by the affirmative action of all City Council Members present; Faria
absent.

CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE NO. 1176 - AMENDING TITLE 2 CHAPTER 2
ARTICLE 2 OF THE LOS BANOS MUNICIPAL CODE TO CREATE PLANNING
COMMISSION DISTRICTS; AMEND THE NUMBER OF MEMBERS AND MANNER
OF APPOINTMENT; LENGTH OF TERMS; AND ABSENCES. (SECOND READING
& ADOPTION) Community & Economic Development Director Elms presented the staff
report which included a PowerPoint presentation. She spoke to how one Planning
Commissioner has passed away and another Planning Commissioner will be resigning.
An urgency ordinance regarding the commission vacancies will be presented at the next
City Council Meeting on November 20.

Motion by Johnson-Santos, seconded by Jones to waive the second reading of
Ordinance No. 1176 - Amending Title 2 Chapter 2 Article 2 of the Los Banos Municipal
Code to Create Planning Commission Districts, Amend the Number of Members and
Manner of Appointment; Length of Terms; and Absences. The motion carried by the
affirmative action of all City Council Members present; Faria absent.



Motion by Johnson-Santos, seconded by Jones to introduce Ordinance No. 1176 
Amending Title 2 Chapter 2 Article 2 of the Los Banos Municipal Code to Create
Planning Commission Districts, Amend the Number of Members and Manner of
Appointment; Length of Terms; and Absences. The motion carried by the following roll
call vote: AYES: Johnson-Santos, Jones, Lewis, Villalta; NOES: None; ABSENT:
Faria.

NOTICE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF VACANCIES AND APPOINTMENT OF
COUNCIL MEMBERS TO SERVE ON THE SELECTION COMMITTEES FOR THE
FOLLOWING COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES: AIRPORT ADVISORY COMMISSION 
FOUR (4) VACANCIES, TWO (2) TWO (2) YEAR TERMS - EXPIRING DECEMBER
31, 2021, TWO (2) UNEXPIRED TERMS - EXPIRING DECEMBER 31, 2020;
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMISSION - THREE (3) VACANCIES,
ONE (1) TWO (2) YEAR TERMS - EXPIRING DECEMBER 31, 2021. TWO (2)
UNEXPIRED TERMS - EXPIRING DECEMBER 31. 2020; PARKS & RECREATION
COMMISSION - TWO (2) VACANCIES, TWO (2) TWO (2) YEAR TERMS - EXPIRING
DECEMBER 31. 2021; TREE COMMISSION - THREE (3) VACANCIES, THREE (3)
TWO (2) YEAR TERMS - EXPIRING DECEMBER 31, 2021; MEASURE H
COMMITTEE - TWO (2) VACANCIES, TWO (2) TWO (2) YEAR TERMS - EXPIRING
DECEMBER 31,2021; MEASURE P COMMITTEE - THREE (3) VACANCIES, THREE
(3) THREE (3) YEAR TERMS - EXPIRING DECEMBER 31, 2022. City Clerk/Human
Resources Director Mallonee announced the commission/committee vacancies.

Motion by VillaIta, seconded by Johnson-Santos to appoint Council Member Lewis to
the Selection Committee with the Mayor for the Airport Advisory Commission. The
motion carried by the affirmative action of all City Council Members present; Faria
absent.

Motion by Villa/ta, seconded by Lewis to appoint Council Member Jones to the Selection
Committee with the Mayor for the Economic Development Advisory Commission. The
motion carried by the affirmative action of all City Council Members present; Faria
absent.

Motion by Villalta, seconded by Jones to appoint Council Member Faria to the Selection
Committee with the Mayor for the Parks & Recreation Commission. The motion carried
by the affirmative action of all City Council Members present; Faria absent.

Motion by Villalta, seconded by Johnson-Santos to appoint Council Member Johnson
Santos to the Selection Committee with the Mayor for the Tree Commission. The
motion carried by the affirmative action of all City Council Members present; Faria
absent.

Motion by Villalta, seconded by Lewis to appoint Council Member Lewis to the Selection
Committee with the Mayor for the Measure H Committee. The motion carried by the
affirmative action of all City Council Members present; Faria absent.



City Clerk/Human Resources Director Mallonee noted that the Police Chief and Fire
Chief recommend appointments to Measure P Committee to the City Council for
approval.

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE FOR EMERGENCY PLANNING
COMMISSION VACANCY(S). Community & Economic Development Director Elms
presented the staff report and spoke to how there have been some unexpected
vacancies in the commission and that in order to conduct business and keep the
Planning Commission Meetings going, she is requesting that the City Council approve
the advertisement of these emergency vacancies. The ordinance that was just approved
is planned to go into effect immediately with the passage of an urgency ordinance that
is to be presented at the next City Council Meeting on November 20.

There was Council Member and staff discussion pertaining to how there is only one
vacancy looking to be filled at the present time, how these applications would be
submitted through the City Clerk's Office and how staff is hoping to fill these vacancies
with representatives from certain districts. Beginning with the 2020 election, Planning
Commissioners will begin to be formally elected by district representation per the
ordinance that was recently adopted.

Motion by Lewis, seconded by Johnson-Santos to dispense with the normal process of
advertising for the Planning Commission vacancy and accept nominations to fill the
position and bring back to the City Council for consideration and approval. The motion
carried by the affirmative action of all City Council Members present, Faria absent.

CONSIDERATION OF FUNDING OPTIONS FOR PIONEER ROAD WIDENING
PROJECT. City Manager Terrazas presented the staff report, which included a
PowerPoint presentation.

There was Council Member and staff discussion pertaining to the importance of this
project and how it needs to be done as soon as possible. This project has been
discussed for a long time but before funding sources are sought, a project study review
needs to be conducted to have formal backing on its importance and safety benefits.

It was the consensus of the City Council to pursue all potential funding options for the
Pioneer Road Widening Project: i.e. RTIP/STIP, Measure V Regional - West - "20%
set-aside", Measure V Regional - West - Bonding, Local Partnership Program (LPP)
Formula, Highway Infrastructure Program (HIP), Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality
(CMAQ), Measure V Local (Los Banos), SB 1 - LPP, SB 1 - Trade Corridor Program
(TCEP), CalTrans & CTC Interregional Transportation Improvement Plan (ITIP), and
federally discretional programs (BUILD, INFRA).

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 6157 
REQUESTING THAT $5,000,000 OF STATE TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT
PROGRAM CARRYOVER REGIONAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS REMAIN AS
UNPROGRAMMED AND AVAILABLE FOR THE PIONEER ROAD WIDENING



PROJECT. City Manager Terrazas presented the staff report, which included a
PowerPoint presentation.

There was Council Member and staff discussion pertaining to how this item will be
presented due to Highway 152 being a safety concern, deemed by CalTrans, in order to
support the funding request being brought forth. Together, the City and a chosen
engineering firm, with the support of CalTrans, will be working on a project study review
in support of this project. The California Transportation Commission will ultimately
decide how funds in the State Transportation Improvement Program will be used which
is why having the best supporting evidence of the need for projects is essential.

Motion by Villalta, seconded by Jones to adopt City Council Resolution No. 6157 
Requesting that $5,000,000 of State Transportation Improvement Program Carryover
Regional Improvement Funds Remain as Unprogrammed and Available and $5,000,000
of Measure V funds Allocated to the County of Merced Local Projects Be Earmarked
and Available for the Pioneer Road Widening Project. The motion carried by the
following vote: AYES: Johnson-Santos, Villalta; NOES: Jones, Lewis; ABSENT: Faria.

ADVISEMENT OF PUBLIC NOTICES (No Report).

CITY MANAGER REPORT. City Manager Terrazas stated that it is always a pleasure
to see Mr. Delacruz and his students and applauded Miss Morales for speaking at the
podium. He thanked all for coming to tonight's meeting.

REPORT/UPDATE ON MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS
(MCAG) AND MEASURE V COMMITTEE. No report

CITY COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS.

DEBORAH LEWIS: Council Member Lewis stated that on November 9 at 6:00 p.m. at
Hotel Del Oro in Santa Nella there will be a fund raiser for the Boys and Girls Club of
Merced benefiting the Los Banos program. On October 23, the annual Peace for
Families March was held and she is proud of the organization for their efforts and of the
city for showing its support to the cause. The Fun Fest that was held on October 31 on
West I and West L Street was a successful event. Police Chief Brizzee attended as well
as the Fire Department. Every year the event continues to grow.

TOM FARIA: Absent.

DARONICA JOHNSON-SANTOS: Mayor Pro Tem Johnson-Santos spoke regarding
the Party in the Park event held on October 19 at Ranchwood Park and thanked the
Parks & Recreation Operations Manager, Joe Heim, and all his employees for their
efforts in putting on a great event.

BRETT JONES: No report



MAYOR MICHAEL VILLALTA: Mayor Villalta stated that attending events with his
fellow Council Members is a pleasure and presenting proclamations is an honor. He
spoke regarding the upcoming Elks Lodge Veterans Lunch and the Volta Flag raising on
November 8. Thanked the City Council for the unity as he appreciates it very much.
They're doing the right thing how it is the right thing to do and let's stay as a cohesive
group.

ADJOURNMENT. The meeting was adjourned at 9:36 PM.

APPROVED:

Michael Villalta, Mayor

ATTEST:

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk



LosBa
f I lhl' CJossnuuls

Agenda Staff Report

as

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

Mayor Villalta and City Council Members

Stacy Souza Elms, Community and Economic Development Director~

November 20, 2019

TYPE OF REPORT: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Adopt a Resolution Reducing the Annual Renewal Commercial Business
License Fee

Recommendation:

Staff recommends the City Council adopt a resolution to reduce the Annual Renewal
Commercial Business License Fee within the User Fee Schedule.

Background:

On September 18, 2019, the Los Banos City Council held a public hearing and adopted
Resolution No. 6131 adopting the City's Cost Allocation Plan and the Comprehensive
User Fee Study including the User Fee Schedule. These fees included indirect costs of
providing services as well as the process involved to provide direct services. The
adopted fee schedule provides actual costs of services in order to obtain one hundred
percent cost recovery.

Some of the adopted user fees were recommended at less than one hundred percent of
the actual costs of services due to the desire to make the services more accessible to
the community, and to avoid drastic increases in the costs of those services. Business
License Fees were adjusted to better capture more of the City's costs; however,
increases were limited to avoid overburdening business owners in some cases. One
such case was the initial first time business license base fee, which was adjusted down
from $492.48 (as calculated by the cost allocation plan and user fee study) to $162.52.

1



The result of the adjustment is that the General Fund will be subsidizing the cost of
processing an initial business license by 67%.

Discussion:

Staff is requesting the City Council consider subsidizing the Annual Renewal
Commercial Business License fee. This is a new fee that was developed through the
User Fee Schedule, which estimates the full cost to process an Annual Renewal
Commercial Business License at $235.62. Prior to adoption of the new user fee
schedule, the basic Commercial Business License fee was $78.00, which was
established in 2009.

Based on the new user fee study, staff is recommending subsidizing the cost of an
Annual Renewal Commercial Business License of $235.62 by 45% to $130.00. The
General Fund will subsidize the 45% reduction of processing the Annual Renewal
Commercial Business License similar to the initial first time business license base fee.
This reduction is recommended to avoid overburdening the majority of business owners
who renew their business licenses annually.

Fiscal Impact:

The General Fund will be expected to continue to subsidize the cost of processing
Annual Renewal Commercial Business Licenses. The current annual fee is $78.00 and
staff is recommending establishing the new fee at $130.00, which is a 45% reduction of
the City's actual costs to provide service. This proposed reduction is proposed to avoid
a drastic increase in the cost of service to commercial businesses.

Reviewed by:

Alex Terrazas, City Manager

Attachments:

Resolution
Public Hearing Notice

2



RESOLUTION NO. __

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF LOS BANOS REDUCING THE ANNUAL
RENEWAL COMMERCIAL BUSINESS LICENSE
FEE

WHEREAS, the City of Los Banos adopted Resolution 6131 which adopted a
comprehensive fee schedule establishing and amending certain service and
development related fees for City services; and

WHEREAS, the City of Los Banos currently imposes service fees to recover the
costs of staff time, copying costs, and other expenses related to processing business
licenses; and

WHEREAS, a Comprehensive User Fee Study was conducted, which the City
adjusted certain existing user fees and imposes new user fees for providing services;
and

WHEREAS, the establishment and increase of service fees is statutorily and
categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act
because setting services fees fits within the statutory exemptions for local agency
decisions involving rates, tolls or other charges pursuant to Public resources Code
Section 21 080(b)(8) and Section 15273 of the California Environmental Quality Act
Guidelines this Resolution is not "an essential step culminating in action which may
affect the environment"; and

WHEREAS, on November 20, 2019, the City Council of the City of Los Banos
conducted a duly noticed public hearing concerning an amendment to the Annual
Renewal Commercial Business License Fee at which time the public was invited to
make oral and written comments as part of the regularly scheduled meeting prior to
adoption of this Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Los
Banos does hereby:

1. Finds and determines that the fees for services do not exceed the estimated
reasonable costs of services for which they were imposed and otherwise comply
with the provisions of California law.

2. The Annual Renewal Commercial Business License Fee as set forth in the User
Fee Schedule is hereby amended as set forth in Attachment A, attached hereto
and incorporated herein by this reference, and shall be effective December 1,
2019.

1



The foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council
of the City of Los Banos held on the 20th day of November 2019, by Council Member
___ who moved its adoption, which motion was duly seconded by Council Member
___ and the Resolution adopted by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Michael Villalta, Mayor

ATTEST:

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk

2



ATTACHMENT A
Annual Renewal Commercial Business License Fee Calculation

Current Suggested
# Description Fee/Charge Unit Full Cost Subsidy % Fee

Annual Renewal Commercial Basic
49 Business License $78.00 Fee $235.62 45% $130.00

3



LOS Banos
COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

Date: November 8, 2019

Regarding: Notice of Public Hearing

Proposal: Business License Renewal Fee

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a Public Hearing will be held by the Los Banos City
Council to consider amending the Business License Renewal Fee.

Information regarding the calculation of these fees and all necessary back up material is
available in the Community and Economic Development Department located at 520 J
Street, Los Banos, CA 93635, during normal business hours.

A PUBLIC HEARING on this matter will be held at the next scheduled meeting of the
Los Banos City Council on Wednesday, November 20, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council
Chambers of Los Banos City Hall located at 520 "J" Street. Questions regarding the
above-referenced item may be directed to Stacy Souza Elms, Community and
Economic Development Director, at City Hall or at (209) 827-2433.

All persons are invited to be present at the public hearing. Written and oral testimony is
invited. Notice is hereby further given that if you challenge the above described item in
court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the
public hearing described in this Notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the
Planning Commission at, or prior to, the public hearing.

Additional information may be obtained from the Community & Economic Development
Department at 520 J Street, Los Banos, California. In compliance with the Americans
with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please
contact the Office of the City Clerk at (209) 827-7000. Notification at least 72 hours
prior to the public hearing will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to
allow participation at this hearing

THE CITY OF LOS BANOS

Stacy Souza Elms
Community and Economic Development Director



.-Cos Banos
A. t '" ~~r()ss,(}ad~oJ

Agenda Staff Report

J

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

Mayor VillaIta & City Council Members

Stacy Souza Elms, Community and Economic Development Directo~
William A Vaughn, City Attorney

November 20, 2019

SUBJECT: Planning Commission Urgency Ordinance

TYPE OF REPORT:

Recommendation:

Regular Agenda

Staff recommends that the City Council 1) waive the reading of Ordinance No ; 2)
introduce Ordinance No __; 3) adopt Ordinance No _

AN UNCODIFIED URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LOS
BANOS AMENDING TITLE 2 CHAPTER 2 ARTICLE 2 OF THE
LOS BANOS MUNICIPAL CODE TO AMEND THE NUMBER OF
MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION

Background:

Currently the Planning Commission has three vacancies on the seven member
commission. Furthermore, one of the four current members due to health issues is not
available to attend Planning Commission meetings for the near future. Due to the
foregoing, the Planning Commission cannot meet to conduct business as it is unable to
assemble a quorum as required by the Los Banos Municipal Code. On November 6,
2019 the city council approved Ordinance No __ which among other things will
reduce the number of commissioner from five to seven members and reduce the
quorum requirement to three or more members. Ordinance No does not take effect

1



until December 7, 2019. In the meantime, the Planning Commission will not be able to
meet the quorum requirements to conduct a meeting.

Discussion:

It is necessary, for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety,
that the Planning Commission be able to conduct important and necessary business.
Therefore, it is necessary that the City immediately reduce the number of Planning
Commissioners to five members so that a quorum can be assembled to allow the
Planning Commission to conduct business.

Pursuant to California Government Code section 36937 ordinances take effect 30 days
after their final adoption. In this circumstance Ordinance No will take effect
December 7, 2019. However, California Government Code section 36937 allows an
ordinance to take effect immediately for the immediate preservation of the public peace,
health or safety if there is a declaration of facts constituting the urgency, and is passed
by a four-fifths vote of the City Council.

Staff is of the opinion that the delay of business to be considered by the Planning
Commission until December 7,2019 justifies and supports the urgency.

Fiscal Impact:

Approval of this item will not result in net city cost.

CEQA

This Urgency ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act
("CEQA") pursuant to Section 15060(c)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines (Title 14, Chapter 3
of the California Code of Regulations) because the activity will not result in a direct or
reasonable foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment, and Section
15060(c)(3) because the activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378 of the
CEQA Guidelines because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to the
environment, directly or indirectly.

Conclusion:

Staff is available to answer any questions.

2



Attachments:
1) Proposed Ordinance

3



ORDINANCE NO.

AN UNCODIFIED URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LOS
BANOS AMENDING TITLE 2 CHAPTER 2 ARTICLE 2 OF THE LOS
BANOS MUNICIPAL CODE TO AMEND THE NUMBER OF MEMBERS
OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION

The City Council of the City of Los Banos does ordain as follows:

Section 1. Urgency Findings The City Council hereby finds, determines and
declares pursuant to California Government Code Section 36937 (b) that this urgency
ordinance is necessary to address a current and immediate threat to the public health,
safety and welfare of the City and its residents based on the following declaration of
facts:

A. Currently the Planning Commission has three vacancies on the seven
member commission. Furthermore, one of the four current members due to health
issues is not available to attend Planning Commission meetings for the near future.
Due to the foregoing, the Planning Commission cannot meet to conduct business as it is
unable to assemble a quorum as required by the Los Banos Municipal Code. It is
necessary, for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety, that
the Planning Commission be able to conduct important and necessary business.
Therefore, it is necessary that the City immediately reduce the number of Planning
Commissioners to five members so that a quorum can be assembled to allow the
Planning commission to conduct business.

Section 2. Section 2-2.203 and Section 2-2.211 of the Los Banos Municipal Code
respectively is amended to read as follows:

Sec 2-2.203

The Planning Commission shall consist of five (5) commissioners.

Sec. 2-2.211

Three (3) members of the Commission shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business, but a lesser number may adjourn from time to time

Section 3. CEQA. This Urgency ordinance is not subject to the California
Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to Section 15060(c)(2) of the CEQA
Guidelines (Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations) because the
activity will not r.esult in a direct or reasonable foreseeable indirect physical change in
the environment, and Section 15060(c)(3) because the activity is not a project as
defined in Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines because it has no potential for
resulting in physical change to the environment, directly or indirectly.



Section 4. Severability. This Urgency ordinance is adopted under the authority of
City Council of the City of Los Banos and State law. If any section, subsection, clause or
phrase is declared invalid or otherwise void by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall
not affect any remaining provision hereof. In this regard City Council finds and declares
that it would have adopted this measure notwithstanding any partial invalidity hereof.

Section 5. Certification of City Clerk. This Urgency Ordinance is adopted by a
four-fifths majority vote of the City Council. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of
this ordinance and, within 15 days after its adoption, shall cause it to be published in
accord with California Law.

Section 6. Effective date/Sunset provision. This Urgency Ordinance shall be in
full force immediately upon its passage and shall remain in effect until December 7,
2019, and on that date shall be repealed in its entirety.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED on the __ day of , 2019 by the
following vote:

AYES: Council Members
NOES:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Michael VillaIta, Mayor

ATIEST:

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk



LOS Banos
At CJO~s,(}(uh or (alUoJ nill

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

Agenda Staff Report

Mayor Villalta and City Council Members

Stacy Souza Elms, Community and Economic Development Director )f6E
November 20,2019

TYPE OF REPORT: Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Planning Commission Vacancy

Recommendation:

That the City Council accept a nomination to fill the current vacancy on the Planning
Commission for one (1) year to expire on December 31,2020.

Discussion:

As of the date of this staff report, staff has received five (5) applications and will be
providing one nomination to the City Council for consideration.

Staff has evaluated each application and is recommending the nominated candidate
serve the unexpired vacant term until December 31,2020.

Reviewed by:

a::--
Alex Terrazas, City Manager

1



TO:

FROM:

DATE:

LOS Banos
of California

Agenda Staff Report

Mayor & City Council Members

Alex Terrazas, City Manager -t\{
November 20,2019

TYPE OF REPORT: Agenda Item

SUBJECT: Pioneer Road Widening Project Update

Recommendation:
Provide direction to staff regarding the Pioneer Road Widening Project and the State
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP).

Background:
At the November 6, 2019 City Council meeting the City Council adopted Resolution
Number 6157 regarding construction funding for the Pioneer Road Widening Project.
Based on the direction provided by this resolution City Staff presented the resolution to
the MCAG Technical Review Board (TRB) made up of the City Managers in the County
and the County Chief Executive Officer. The City's request to maintain $5,000,000 of
STIP funding as unprogrammed was not approved by the TRB. The next step in the
development of the STIP is the MCAG Governing Board's action to approve the Draft
STIP at their November 21,2019 meeting.

The purpose of this agenda item is to update the City Council regarding Pioneer Road
Widening Project, the STIP development process and seek additional direction from the
City Council regarding the Pioneer Road project.

Attachments:
1. Resolution Number 6157



RESOLUTION NO. 6157

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF LOS BANOS REQUESTING THAT
$5,000,000 OF STATE TRANSPORTATION
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM CARRYOVER
REGIONAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS REMAIN AS
UNPROGRAMMED AND AVAILABLE AND
$5,000,000 OF MEASURE V FUNDS ALLOCATED
TO THE COUNTY OF MERCED LOCAL PROJECTS
BE EARMARKED AND AVAILABLE FOR THE
PIONEER ROAD WIDENING PROJECT

WHEREAS; the City of Los Banos General Plan identifieS Pioneer Road as a future
four lane arterial to improve connectivity, transportation circulation and bicycle and
pedestrian facilities and to help mitigate public safety concerns due to the traffic congestion
on Pacheco Boulevard; and

WHEREAS, the Pioneer Road Widening Project has been allocated $8,600,000 of
Regional Measure V Funds for design and right-of-way acquisition; and

WHEREAS, the Pioneer Road Widening Project has received a Caltrans Planning
Grant in the amount of $220,000 to develop a Specific Plan for the project; and

WHEREAS, the City of Los Banos has entered into a funding agreement with the
Merced County Association of Governments in order to receive and expend Measure V
funds for the design and right-of-way acquisition for the project; and

WHEREAS, the Pioneer Road Widening Project has a construction funding need of
approximately $36,400,000; and

WHEREAS, the ability to access State Transportation Improvement Program Funds
would greatly improve the viability of the Pioneer Road Widening Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that:

1. The City Council of the City of Los Banos does hereby request that $5.000,000 of
State Transportation Improvement Program Carryover Regional Improvement Funds remain
as unprogrammed and available for the Pioneer Road Widening Project; and

2. The City Council of the City of Los Banos does hereby request that $5,000,000 of
Measure V funds allocated for the County of Merced local projects be earmarked and be
made available tor the Pioneer Road Widening Project.

The foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of
the City of Los Banos held on the 6th day of November 2019, by Mayor Villalta who moved
its adoption, which motion was duly seconded by Council Member Jones and the
Resolution adopted by the follOWing vote:

AYES;
NOES:
ABSENT:

ATIEST:

Council Members Johnson-Santos, Jones, Lewis, Mayor VillaIta
None
COuncil Member Faria

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk




